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Basic Energy Corporation
BSC

PSE Disclosure Form 17­2 ­ Quarterly Report
References: SRC Rule 17 and

Sections 17.2 and 17.8 of the Revised Disclosure Rules

For the period ended Mar 31, 2017
Currency (indicate units,
if applicable) PESO

Balance Sheet

Period Ended Fiscal Year Ended (Audited)
Mar 31, 2017 Dec 31, 2016

Current Assets 144,852,830 170,094,337
Total Assets 709,894,384 721,041,932
Current Liabilities 8,435,088 8,112,359
Total Liabilities 23,654,017 21,831,288
Retained
Earnings/(Deficit) 53,634,862 64,317,205

Stockholders' Equity 748,870,748 768,232,496
Stockholders' Equity ­ Parent 792,072,038 804,485,240
Book Value per Share 0.25 0.26

Income Statement

Current Year­To­Date Previous Year­To­Date Current Year 
(3 Months)

Previous Year 
(3 Months)

Operating Revenue 0 0 0 0
Other Revenue 3,896,569 4,759,529 3,896,569 4,759,529
Gross Revenue 3,896,569 4,759,529 3,896,569 4,759,529
Operating Expense 0 0 0 0
Other Expense 14,187,441 12,727,963 14,187,441 12,727,963
Gross Expense 14,187,441 12,727,963 14,187,441 12,727,963



Net Income/(Loss)
Before Tax ­10,290,872 ­7,968,435 ­10,290,872 ­7,968,435

Income Tax Expense 0 0 0 0
Net Income/(Loss) After
Tax ­10,290,872 ­7,968,435 ­10,290,872 ­7,968,435

Net Income Attributable
to
Parent Equity Holder

­10,682,343 ­9,969,124 ­10,682,343 ­9,969,124

Earnings/(Loss) Per
Share
(Basic)

­0 ­0 ­0 ­0

Earnings/(Loss) Per
Share
(Diluted)

­0 ­0 ­0 ­0

Other Relevant Information

Please see attached SEC Form 17­Q as of March 31, 2017.

Filed on behalf by:
Name CORAZON BEJASA
Designation CORPORATE SECRETARY
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PART I--FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Item 1. Financial Statements. 

''Attachment A"" 

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. 

''Attachment A·· 

PART 11--0THER INFORMATION 

"Attachment A .. 

The registrant may, at its option, report under this item any information not previously reported 
in a report on SEC Form I 7-C. If disclosure of such information is made under this Part II, it need not 
be repeated in a report on Form I 7-C which would otherwise be required to be filed with respect to such 
information or in a subsequent report on Form I 7-Q. 

SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of the SRC, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed 
on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 

Registrant C'f!J#l~ASA 
Title ________ V..;,...::.P-'&=-C=or:...ip;=..:o:..:r-=ac:.te:o.=S=ec=r:...:e=ta=r,_,v'-----

Date. ________ ..:...A:.a;p:..:.r=il-=1""9_,,,-=2"'-0..:..17'--------

Principal Financial/ 
Accounting Offi cer/Contro II er_~-====-=4=.,:_:;..~_:....:==-"=--=c..::=:...:....::..= 

Title __________ __,_V....:P--=&::........:T,_,r-=e=-a"-'su::..:r:...:e~r--------

Date __________ ~A~p~r~il'-"'-'19~,-'2~0~1~7----~ 
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ATTACHMENT "A" 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
For the Period Ended March 31, 2017 

1. The following unaudited Financial Statements arc cont11incd in this report: 

I. I Statements of Income and Retained Earnings foi· the Period Ended March 31, 2017 
and March 31, 2016; 

1.2 Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2017 and December 3 I, 2016; 
1.3 Statements of Cash Flows for the Period Ended March 3 I, 2017 and March 31, 

2016; 
1.4 Statements of Changes in Stockholders· Equity for the Period Ended March 31, 2017 

and March 3 I, 20 16. 

2. Discussion on Financial Condition for the Period December 31, 2016 and March 31, 
2017. 

A. Key Performance Indicators 

Management considers the following as key pert'onnam:e indicators of the company: 
Return on Investment (ROI). Profit Margin. Performance nl· Committed Work Programs. 
Current Ratio and Asset Turnover. 

The following table shows the Top 5 performance indicators for the past three interim 
periods: 

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

Return on Investments (ROI) 
(Net Income/Ave.Stockholders' Equity) 

Profit Margin 
(Net Income/Net Revenue) 

Investment in Projects(Non-Petroleum) 
as a % of Total Assets 

Investment in Wells & Other Facilities 
as a % of Total Assets 

Current Ratio 
(Current AsseUCurrent Liabilities) 

Asset turnover 
(Net revenue/Ave.Total Assets) 

Solvency Ratios 
Debt to Equity Ratio 

Asset to Equity Ratio 

Interest Rate Coverage Ratio 

1st Otr 2017 

·1.36% 

-264.10% 

38.79% 

14.27% 

17.17:1 

0.54% 

3.16% 

94.76% 

n/a 

1st Otr 2016 1st Qtr 2015 

·0.98% 3.33% 

-167.42% 58.51% 

24.87% 23.76% 

28.06% 24.01% 

26.42"1 18.32:1 

0.58% 5.59% 

2.80% 2.68% 

101 34% 101.45% 

n/a n/a 
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ROI (Net Income I Average Stockholders' Equity) measures the profitability of stockholders' 
investment. Profit Margin (Net Income I Net Revenue) measures the net income produced by 
each peso of revenue. Investment in Projects as a % or Assets. measures how much the 
company invested in its committed work programs. Current Ratio ( Currt:nt Assets I Current 
Liabilities) measures the short-term debt-paying ability or tht: company. Asset Turnover (Net 
Revenue I Average Total Assets) measures how efficiently assets are used to produce profit. 

ROI was -1.36% for the !st quarter of2017, -0.98% for the I'' quarter of2016, and 3.33% for 
the I st quarter of 2015. The negative rates in 2016 and 2017 were due to the losses booked 
during those quarters while the positive rate in 2015 was due to the income generated during 
that quarter. 

Profit Margin was -264.10% for the 1" quai1er of 2017. -16 7.42°10 for the I" quarter of 2016, 
and 58.51 % for the 1st quarter of 2015. The negative rates in 2016 and 2017 were due to the 
losses booked during those quarters and the positive rate in 2015 was due to the income 
generated during that quarter as mentioned in the previous paragraph. 

Investment in Projects (Non- Petroleum) as a% of Total Assets increased from 23.76% for 
the I st quarter of 2015 to 24.87% for the I st quarter of 2016 and to 38. 79% for the I st quarter 
of 2017. The increase in rate from 2015 to 2016 was clue to the decrease in total assets in 
relation to investments. The increase in rate from 2016 to 2017 was clue to the increase in 
investments while total assets decreased. 

Investment in Wells & Other Facilities as a % of Total Assets increased from 24.01 % for the 
I st quarter of 2015 to 28.06% for the 1st quarter of 2016 and decreased to 14.27% for the 1st 
quarter of 2017. The increase in rate from 2015 to 2016 was due to the increase in investments 
while total assets decreased. The decrease in rate from :w 16 to 2017 was due to decreases in 
both investments and total assets. 

Current Ratio was 17.17:1 forthe l'tquarterof2017,26.42:1 for the l''quarterof2016,and 
18.32:1 for the is• quarter of2015. The decrease in ratio from 2016 to 2017 was due to the 
decrease in current assets while current liabilities increased. The increase in ratio from 2015 to 
2016 was due to decreases in both current assets and current liabilities. 

Asset Turnover was 0.54°/ci for the 1" quarter of 2017. 0.58° o li.H the I'' quarter of 2016, and 
5.59% for l" quarter of 2015. The decreases in asset turnowr from 2016 to 2017 and from 
2015 tO 2016 were due to decreases in both revenue and total assets. 

Debt to Equity Ratio was 3.16% for the I" quai1er of 2017. 2.80% for the 151 qua11er of 2016, 
and 2.68% for the 1" quarter of 2015. The increase in ratio from 2016 to 2017 was due to the 
increase in total liabilities while equity decreased. The increase in ratio from 2015 to 2016 
was due to decreases both in total liabilities and equity. 

Asset to Equity Ratio was 94.76% for the 1 si quarter of 2017, I 01.34% for the 1" quarter of 
2016, and 101.45% for the 1st quarter of2015. The decreases in ratio from 2016 to 2017 and 
from 2015 to 2016 were due to decreases in both total assets and equity. 

B. Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition as of March 31, 2017 

For the quarter ending March 31. 2017. the company recorded total revenue of Php 3 .896 
million and total cost and expenses of Php 14.187 mi 11 ion resulting to a net loss of Php I 0.291 
million with minority interest recorded at Php 0.391 million for a net loss net of minority 
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interests of Php I 0.682 million. 

Total revenue for the I'' quarter or 2017 or Phr 3.8% million""' from intt.' rt.'St<. and dividends 
from placements and in..,estments amount ing to Phr 2.1 ~ I million and rt.'al i/t.'d and unrealized 
foreign e:-.change gains or Php 1.7-15 million. 

Cost and expenses for the I" quarter or :w 17 amounting to Phr 1-1.187 million were all from 
general and administrative expenses. 

Total Assets as of March 3 1. 201 7 <,tood at Php 709.89 I 1rn llion .i dt.'nt.'.1,t.' nr Php 11 .1-18 
mill ion from Php 721.0-12 million a<. or Dt.'ct.'mht.'r 1 I. 2016 ( ll lh'll t .1" 1.'1'. mo~tl;. in ca h 
and cash equi va lents decrea ed b~ Phr 25 .2-1 2 million. a ... tht.', 1.' \\t.'r1.· u, 1.·d for ort.'rations and for 
the cash requirements of the existing pro,iects of tho: rnmpan: . "<011-1:urrt.'1ll as..,..:ts. ho\\ ever. 
increased by Php 14.094 million . The increase was prirnaril;. in ddern:d charges amounting to 
Php 13.502 million for the costs and e\penses or the e,i.,ting r roiect'> or tht.' compan) and in 
property and equipment which increased b} Php 1.709 million dut' tone\\ acquisitions. These 
increases were. however. partially offset b) a decrease in <l\ailable fo r sale (AFS) financial 
assets of Php 1.112 million due to fair "alut.' adjustm.:nh. 

Total Liabilities increased b} Php 1.823 million from PhP 21.831 million a~ or December 31, 
2016 to Php 23.654 million as of March 31. 20 17 due to accruals for certain payables and 
expenses and accruals for retirement benefits. 

Total Stockholders· Equ ity as of March 3 1. 20 17 stood at Php 7-18.87 1 million a decrease of 
Php 13.362 mi llion from Php 762.233 million as or Oecemht.'r 1 I. 2016. Th is '' as due to the 
net loss booked for the I'' quarter or 20 I 7 or Php IO.MC mi 11 i11n. lair 'alu1.· adj ll'>tments on AFS 
financial assets or Php 1.1 21 million and cumulat 1\t.' t1 .111 ... l.1tll111 .1d111 , t111t.'nt 01· Php 1.558 
million. 

The interi m financial report is in compli ance '"ith general!;. acct'pt.:d accounting pri nciples. The 
same accounting policies and methods of computation '' ert.' fol lo\\ t.'d in thi.: interim financial 
statements. as compared with the most recent audi ted financial ~t att.'ment s . '' hich are as of 
December 3 I . 2016. 

The interim operations are not characteri1ed b;. an: '>t.'a~onal1t ;. or c;.d1calit;. . I he nature and 
amount of items affecting assets. liabil ities. equ it). net income and ca~h ll cH\ S are explained in 
Attachment .. A .. on Financial In formation for the period ending March 31. 20 17. 

There are no changes in estimates of amounts reported in rrior interim periods of the current 
financial year or those reported in prior financial years. 

On eptcmher 8. 201 1. the SEC arrrc)\t.'d the . tock Opt inn Plan (\O Pl nf tht.' Parent Comr any 
granting directors. 1m:mber'> or the ach i' or: board. nrtit·1.·r, and t'mpln;. t't.' '- of the Parent 
Compan:r options to purchase. at the par value or P0.25 pt'r shart.'. a tota l nr 500.000.000 shares. 
Out of these shares. 26.7 million ha\-e been paid and Ii ted in the Ph ilippine ' tock Exchange on 
January 21, 2013 which was classified as deposit for future stock ~ubscript ion as of December 
31, 20 12. On July 24, 20 13, the Ph ilippi ne tock fachange apprO\cd for listing the remaining 
4 73,300,000 shares. As of December 3 1. 20 16. I 17.625 mi Il ion . OP !> hares ''ere I isted in the 
Phi li ppine tock Exchange. 

There \\-t:re no dividends paid (aggn:gate or per ~hari.:l ..,1.·paratt.'I: liir nrd inar: '>hart's and other 
shares. 

Currentl y, the company has a single business and geograrhical 'egment and therefore. segment 



- 6 -

disclosures have not been included. 

There are no material events subsequent to the end or the interim period that ha ve not been 
renected in the financial statements for the interim period. 

There are no changes in the composition or the compan: during the interim period. including 
business condi tions, acqui ition or disposal or ub'>idiaries and long-term investments, 
restructurings, and discontinuing of operations. 

Since December 31. 2016. there are no other changes in contingent liabil ities or assets and no 
new material contingencies. events or transact ions that ha\ e oc:curred during the current interim 
period. 

There are no trends. demamh. commitment~. e\enh 111· unn:rt.1111t1e ... l..111n\n to management 
that will have a material impact on the compan) ·s liquid11~ . 

There are no material commitments for capi tal expenditure and no seasonal aspects that have a 
material effect on the financ ial conditions or results or operati ons. 

There are no known trends. C\ents or uncertaintie., that ha\e had nr that arc rea.,onabl: expected 
to have a material favorable or unl'a\orabk impact on net ""k" re,enues income from 
continuing operations. 

There are no events that will trigger direct or contingent tinancial obligations that are material 
to the company, including any default or acceleration of an obl igation. 

There are no material off-balance sheet transact ions. arrangement . obligati ons. (including 
contingent obligations). and Olher rel at ion<;hip' of the ccw .. pan: "ith uncnn-;nlidated entities or 
other per ons created during the reporting period . 

The causes for any material changes (5° o of the rek\ ant acrnunt" or <,uch ltm i.:r amount. which 
the company deems material on the basis of other factor") from p..:riod to period\\ hich include 
vert ical and horizontal analys is of any material item. have bei.:n presented in thi s report. 

There were no sales of unregistered or e\empt ecuritie'>. nor \\ere th..:r..: an) issuances of 
securit ies constituting an exempt transaction. 

Finally. there are no other material information for disdo..,ur..: during th..: curr..:n t interim period, 
whether under thi s report or under EC Form 17-C. 

C. Disclo ures per EC Memora ndum C ircular No. 3, Se ries o f 2011 

In compliance with EC Memorandum Circu lar o. 3. Seri..:~ or 2011: Gu idelines on the 
Implementation of PFR 9. we disc lo e that: 

(i) After consideration of the result of its impact evaluation using the outstanding 
balances of financia l statements as of December 31 . 2016. the Company has 
decided not to early adopt either PFRS 9 (2009) or PFR 9 (20 I 0) for its 20 17 
reporting; 

( ii) We will hO\\ever. continue to e\CJluat..: th..: impal·t nr the standard 111 our 
financi al statement for the :ear 2017. 
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BA IC ENER GY CORPORATIO AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLI DATED BALANCE SH EETS 
As of March 31 , 20 17 and December 31 , 20 16 

U AUDITED A DI TED 
March 31 , 2017 December 31, 2016 

ASSETS 

C urrent Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents p. 131 ,374,039 p. 159,625,88 1 
Receivables-net 3,303, l 70 2,500,836 
Other current assets 10, 175,621 7.967 620 
Total C urrent Assets 144,852,830 170,094,337 

Non C urrent Assets 
Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets 134,409,645 135,521 ,886 
Investment propenies 275,380,505 275,380,505 
Property and equipment 49,954,5 12 48,245,295 
Deferred charges 101 ,328,091 87,826,307 
Other noncurrent assets 3 968 802 3,973,602 
Total Non Current Assets 565,041 555 550,947,595 

TOT AL ASSETS p. 709,894,384 p. 72 1,04 1,932 

LI ABILIT IES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

C urrent Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses p. 7,538,950 p. 7,216,22 1 
Income tax payable 7,424 7,424 
Dividends Payable 888.7 14 888,714 
Tota l C urrent Li.abilities p. 8,435,088 p. 8,11 2,359 

Non C urrent Liabilities 
Accrued retirement benefits payable 14,9 11,887 13,411 ,887.00 
Deferred income tax asset 307,042 307 042 
Tota l Noncu r rent Liabilities 15,218,929 13,718,929 
TOTAL LLABCLJTCES p. 23 654,0 17 p. 2 1.831 288 

M inority Interest (62.630.38 1) (63.02 1.8521 
Stockholders' Equity 
Attributable to equity holders of the Company: 
Capital stock[held by 6,613 & 6,658 equity holders 
as of 2017 & 20 16 respectively 650,921 ,096 640,029,628 

Additional Paid-In Capital 35, 748,971 32,699,360 
Deposits for future subscription 13,94 1,078 
Revaluation increment in office condominium 18,845,804 18,845,804 
Fair value adjustments on financial assets 4,5 17,921 5,638,748 
Remeasurement loss on acquired retirement benefits ( 4, 700,836) ( 4, 700,836) 
Cumulative translation adjustment (6,857,069) (5,298,49 1) 
Retained Earnings 53,634,862 64,3 17,205 
Total 752 110,748 765,472,496 
Treasurv stock (at cost) (3.240.000) (3.240.000) 
Tota l Equity 748,870,748 762,232,496 

TOTAL LIA BLLITIES & STOC KHOLDERS'EQ UITY p. 709,894,384 p. 721 ,04 1,932 
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BASIC ENERGY CORPORA TlON, I NC. AND SUBSIDIARJES -2-
CON OLIDATEO STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAI ED EARNI NGS 
For the period ended March 31 , 201 7 and March 31 , 2016 

REVENUES 

Interest, Dividends and Others 
Gain on ale of AFS 
Realized Foreign Exchange Gain 
Unrealized Forex Gain 

CO TS AND EXPENSES 

General and administrative expenses 
Reali.zed Foreign Exchange (Loss) 
Unrealized Forex (Loss) 

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 
PROVISION FOR fNCOME TAX 
Current 
Deferred 

NET INCOME (LOSS) 

MINORITY INTEREST 

RETAINED EARNINGS AT BEGINNl G OF YEAR / 
QUARTER 

RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT) AT ENO OF 
YEAR/ QUARTER 

Earnings (Loss) Per Share 

Formula: Earnings (loss) Per Share 

p. 

p. 

As of 
31-Mar-17 

2,15 1,179 

6,846 
1,738,544 

3,896,569 

14, 187,44 1 

14, 187,44 1 
(I 0,290,872) 

0 

0 

(I 0,290,872) 

(391 471) 

(10,682,343) 

64,31 7,205 

p. 

53,634,862 p. 

(0.0041 )1.P. 

As of 
31-Mar-16 

2,266, 185 

2,493,344 

4,759,529 

12,722,997 

4,967 

12.727,963 
(1 ,968,435' 

0 

0 

(7,968,435) 

(2,000,689) 

(9,969, 124) 

138,443 999 

128,474,875 

(0.0039)1 

- Net Income No. of shares for the quarter ended March 31.201 7 

2,603.684,382 

= Net Income No. of shares f or the quarter ended March 31.2016 

2,560, 11 8,512 



For the Period Ended March 31, 2017 and Marc h 31, 2016 

CA H FLOWS FROM OPERA T ING ACTIVITI ES 
Net I ocome (loss) 
Adjus tment to reconcile net income to net cash provided 

by operat ing activities 
I merest income 
Depreciation.depletion and amortization 
Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss 

Operating income (loss) before working capital changes 
C ha nges in assets and lia bilities 

Decrease {Increase) in asset/s 
Receivables 
Prepayments and other current assets 

Increase (Decrease) in liabilities 
Accounts payable & accrued expenses 
Accrued retirement benefits payable 

Cash generated from (used in) operations 
Interest received 
Taxes paid 

Net cash flows from (used) in operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM I VESTl G ACTIVIT IES 
Additions (Deductions) to: 

AFS Investment 
Deferred charges 
Property & equipment 
Unrealized gain on fair value adjustments 

et cash from (used in) investing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCI G ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from issuance of capital stock 

et cash provided by financing activities 
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j2 

j2 

j2 

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHA1 GE RATE C HANGES IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT 
C M LATIVE TRANSLATION ADJ USTMENT 

ET lNCREASE (DEC REASE) IN CASH A D CASH EQUIVALE T 
CASH AND CASH EQU IVALENT AT BEGlNNlNG OF YEAR/QUA RTER 
CASH AND CASH EQUrYALENT ATE 'D 12 

-3-

Is l quarter 201 7 Isl quarter 2016 

(I 0,290,872) P {7,968,434) 

2, 15 1, 179 2,266,185 
1,446,026 822,449 

(I , 745,390) (2,488,377) 
{8,439,057) (7,368, 177) 

(802,334) (423,043) 
{2,203,20 I) (1 , 168,393) 

322,729 743,697 
1,500,000 1,500,000 

(9,62 1,863) (6, 715,9 1 S) 
(2, 15 1, I 79) (2,266, I 85) 

( 11 ,773,042) 12 (8,982, 100) 

1, 112,24 1 12 2,534,912 
(13,501 ,784) (5,976,711) 
(3, 155,243) (16,1 18) 
( 1, 120,827) (2,543,498) 

( 16,665,613) j2 (6,001 ,4 15) 

12 
j2 

1,745,390 2,488,377 
( 1,558,578) ( 1,081 ,469) 

(28,25 1,84 1) 12 ( 13,576,607) 
159,625,88 1 201 ,015,066 
131,374,039 12 187,438,459 
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BAS IC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSO LIDATED STATEMENTS O F CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

For the Period Ended March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016 

Quarters Ended March 3 I 
2017 20 16 

CAPITAL STOCK - P 0.25 par value 
Authorized - I 0,000,000,000 shares 
Issued and Subscribed 2,603,684,382 2,560, 118,5 12 
Paid-up Capital Stock at beginning of year .p 640,029,628 640,029,628 
Additional Subscription 10,89 1,468 
Paid-up Capital Stock at end of period/quarter Pl 650,92 1,096 640,029,628 

I 
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL 
Balance at beginning of year 32,699,360 32,699,360 
Additional Subscription 3,049,611 
Balance at end of period .p 35,748,971 32,699,360 

REVALUATION INCREMENT fN OFFICE CONDOMINIUM 18,845,804 12,805,479 
FAIR VALUE ADJUSTMENTS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS 4,517,921 2,983,854 
REMEASUREMENT LOSS ON ACQUIRED RETIREMENT BENEFIT -4,700,836 -4,564,364 
CUMULATIVE TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENT -6,857,069 -2,127,20 1 

RETA INED EARNINGS (DEFIC IT) 
Balance at beginning of the year 64,317,205 138,443,999 

Net Income (Loss) for the period ( 10,682,343) (9,969, 123) 

Balance at end of period .p 53,634,862 128,474,876 
TOTAL p. 752, 11 0,748 810,30 1,632 

Treasury Stock (a t cost) (3,240,000~ (3,240,000) 
TOT AL STOC KHOLDER'S EQ UITY 748,870,748 807,061 ,632 
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BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
SCHEDULE OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES 

As of March 31, 2017 

Receivable from Stockholders 
Accrued Interest Receivable 
Advances to Officers & Employees 
Dividends Receivable 
Others 
Less: Allowance for uncollectible accounts 

Basic ~ Corponuon & Subuc:hancs 

AJ.ma of Accounts Rcoe" abic 
Asof Mmoh31,2017 

T ypc of Accounts Rec:en able Total I Monlh 2-3 Mos 4-6 Mos 

a) Trade Rccc:1,ables 

I) 

2) 

3) 

Subiocal 

Less Allow. f(M" 

Doubtful Acct 

Net Trade rcccl\able 

b) Non-Trade Rccc"ablcs 
I) Rccc1,·ables from stoc.lboldcrs 1.718.887 

2) Accrued 1ntcres1 rcccnable 6 16,588 6 16J88 

3) Adunccs 10 offtcen/cmpk>)'CCS 82,1 41 23.6S4 S8,487 34 

4) °''id ends rccc1\ Ible 7&3.254 398,261 319.993 

S)Othcn 2,3.J(),247 3 13,640 138,717 

Subtotal 6.036.117 1,3S2,143 S17,197 

Less Allow For 

Doubcful Acct (l.732.947) 

Net Non..vadc recc1,able J,303,170 1.352,143 587.197 

Net Rcce1,ables (a+ b) J.JOJ,110 II 1.351,143 I 587,197 I 

1 Mos To 
I Ycv 

13,341 

13,341 

83.341 

I 83.341 I 

1-2 Ycan 

347,62S 

347,62S 

347,625 

347,625 

1,718,887 
616,588 

82, 141 
788,254 

2,830,246 
(2,732,947) 
3,303,170 

'Ycan • 
3.s Years lbo\C 

1,718.887 

700.544 1,246.379 

700J44 2,96S.266 

(IS7,079) (2,57S,868) 

S43,466 389,398 

543,466 JS9.J98 I 

Notes If the Compan) 's cc>ILcet1on pcnod docs not m•ch "1th the abo'"C schedule and rc\IStOn tS nocc:SS&r) to maL.e the schedule not mlSlcadma.. the proposed collocuon pc:nod 

tn thi.s schedu.Le ml) bcch-.gcd 10 appropn•ct) reflect the: Comparay's actual colkctt0n pcnod 

Tyl'<' of RecooYOblo Nature. I De.scr1pt1on C0Uect1on period 

l ) 

Z) 

3) 

f\Jote.s: Indicate a brief descr1pt1on of the nature and collect ion period of e.odi re.u1vab~ accounts with mo.Jor baJonces or sepcrate. re.u1vcble captions, 
both for trod< and non-trcd< accounts. 

Past due 
.:counti &. llems 

tn L1ngaoon 
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BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
SCHEDULE OF ACCOUNTS PAY ABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES 

As of March 31, 2017 

Accrued Expense Payables 
SSS/Philhealth/HDMF/BIR Payables 
Others 
Total 

5,530,918 
770,830 

1,237,203 
7,538,950 
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ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES 

Part I - Financial Information 

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards. Notes to Interim Financial Statements: 
(SEC Memorandum Circular No. 6, Series of 2013) 

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures 

The Group applied for the first time certain pronouncements, which are effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after January 1. 2016. Adoption of these pronouncements did not 
have a significant impact on the Group's financial position or performance unless otherwise 
indicated. 

• Amendments to PFRS I 0, Consolidated Financial Statements, PFRS 12, Disclosure of 
Interests in Other Entities, and Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) 28, Investments 
in Associates and Joint Ventures, Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation 
Exception 
These amendments clarify that the exemption in PFRS I 0 from presenting consolidated 
financial statements applies to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity 
that measures all of its subsidiaries at fair value. They also clarify that only a 
subsidiary of an investment entity that is not an investment entity itself and that 
provides support services to the investment entity parent is consolidated. The 
amendments also allow an investor (that is not an investment entity and has an 
investment entity associate or joint venture) to retain the fair value measurement 
applied by the investment entity associate or joint venture to its interests in subsidiaries 
when applying the equity method. 

These amendments do not have any impact on the Group's financial statements. 

• Amendments to PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements, Accou111ingfor Acquisitions of Interests 
in Joint Operations 
The amendments to PFRS 11 require a joint operator that is accounting for the 
acquisition of an interest in a joint operation, in which the activity of the joint operation 
constitutes a business (as defined by PFRS 3). to apply the relevant PFRS 3 principles 
for business combinations accounting. The amendments also clarify that a previously 
held interest in ajoint operation is not remeasured on the acquisition of an additional 
interest in the same joint operation while joint control is retained. In addition, a scope 
exclusion has been added to PFRS 11 to specify that the amendments do not apply 
when the parties sharing joint control, including the reporting entity, are under common 
control of the same ultimate controlling party. 

The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation 
and the acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint operation. 

These amendments do not have any impact to the Group as there has been no interest 
acquired in a joint operation during the period. 



• 14 . 

• PFR 14. Regulutory Deferral Acco11111s 
PFR 14 is an optional standard that allows an entit:. \\hose acti\ ities are subject to 
rate-regulation. to continue appl) ing most or it.., C\i..,ting. accounting. rolicie for 
regulator) deferral account balance ... upon it" lir-..1-1i111e ~ 1 dop1i11n oi"PFRS. l:ntities that 
adopt PFRS 14 must pre ent the regulator: dt:li.:rral an.:ounb a~ ..,cparate line items on 
the statement of financial posi tion and present movements in these account balances as 
separate line items in the statement of income and other comprehens ive income. The 
standard requires disclosu res on the natu re of. and risks associated wi th. the entity's 
rate-regulation and the effects of that rate-regulation on its financial statements. 

ince the Group is an existi ng PFR. preparer. thi.., "tandaru \\Ould not appl). 

• Amendments to PA I. Pre.1e11111111111 of F111w1. 1cil .\·1c11t•111<•1111. I >11t!ll\11re /1111w111"e 
The amendments are intended to assist ent it ics in arpl) i ng. j udg.111ent \\hen meeting the 
presentation and disclosure requ irements in PFR s. The) c larif) the fol lowing: 

• That entiti es shall not reduce the understandabilit) of their financial statements by 
either obscuring material information "ith immaterial information: or aggregating 
material items that have different nature.., or 1·u1Ktirn1 ... 

• That specilic l ine i tems in tl11..· tatement 01· inrnrnc and 01l11:r 1.:rnnprehcnsive 
income and the statement or linancial position Illa) be Ji~ag.g.rcg.at ed 

• T hat entities have flexibility as to the order in "hich the: pre ent the notes to 
financial statements 

• That the share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures 
accounted for using the equity method must be presented in aggregate as a single 
line item. and classified between those items that" ill or" ill not be subsequent ly 
reclassi tied to profit or lo. s. 

These amendments do not have an: impact to the Group. 

• A mendments to PA 16. Proper!_\ '. Pia/I/ and l~c111111111e111 and PAS 38. l11/(/11g1hle 
Assets. Clar(fication ofAcceptahle Methods of De11rena1w11 u11J . .fnwrti:att011 
The amendments c larify the principle in PA 16 and PA 38 that re\enue reflects a 
pattern of econom ic benefits that are generated from operating. a hu ... i ne!:.~ (or'' hich the 
asset is part) rather than the economic benc lih that arc u11i-..111ncd through u~e or the 
asset. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot he u~cd to dq1reciJte propeny, plant 
and equipment and ma) on l) be used in ver) lim i ted ci rcumstances to amort ize 
intangible assets. 

These amendments are applied prospcctivcl: and do not ha\c an: impact to the Group, 
given that the Group has not used a revenue-based method to deprec iate or amorti ze its 
property, plant and equipment and in tangible a ..,ct .... 

• Amendments to PA 16, Property. Plu111u11J1:.·1111111111e111 and Pt\~ 41 . . -lgm:11lt11re. 
Bearer Plants 
The amendments change the accounting requ irements for biological assets that meet the 
definition of bearer plants. Under the amendmen ts. biological a sets that meet the 
defin ition of bearer plants wi ll no longer be v. ithin the scope or PA · 41. Instead, PAS 
16 will apply. After initial recognition. bearer plant-;\\ ill he rnea-.ured under PA 16 at 
accumulated co t (before maturit:) and using ~ i thcr the L"<1'l 111od~I or rc\almttion 
model (after maturit) ). The amendments also r~quire that prouucc that grows on bearer 
plants w ill remain in the scope of PA 4 1 mea ured at fair \alu~ k~s costs to sell . For 
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government grants related to bearer plants, PAS 20, Accounting/or Government Grants 
and Disclosure of Government Assistance, will apply. 

The amendments are applied retrospectively and do not have any impact to the Group 
as the Group does not have any bearer plants. 

• Amendments to PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements, Equity Method in Separate 
Financial Statements 
The amendments allow entities to use the equity method to account for investments in 
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements. 
Entities already applying PFRS and electing to change to the equity method in its 
separate financial statements will have to apply that change retrospectively. 

These amendments do not have any impact on the Group's consolidated financial 
statements. 

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012 - 2014 cycle) 

• Amendment to PFRS 5, Noncurrent Assets Held/(Jr Sale um/ Discontinued Operations, 
Changes in Methods of Disposal 
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarities that changing from a disposal 
through sale to a disposal through distribution to owners and vice-versa should not be 
considered to be a new plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan. 
There is, therefore, no interruption ofthe application of the requirements in PFRS 5. 
The amendment also clarifies that changing the disposal method does not change the 
date of classification. 

• Amendment to PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, Servicing Contracts 
PFRS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures for any continuing involvement in a 
transferred asset that is derecognized in its entirety. The amendment clarifies that a 
servicing contract that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a 
financial asset. An entity must assess the nature of the fee and arrangement against the 
guidance for continuing involvement in PFRS 7 in order to assess whether the 
disclosures are required. The amendment is to be applied such that the assessment of 
which servicing contracts constitute continuing involvement will need to be done 
retrospectively. However, comparative disclosures are not required to be provided for 
any period beginning before the annual period in which the entity first applies the 
amendments. 

• Amendment to PFRS 7, Applicability of the Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed 
Interim Financial Statements 
This amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the disclosures on 
offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities are not required in the condensed 
interim financial report unless they provide a significant update to the information 
reported in the most recent annual report. 

• Amendment to PAS 19, Employee Benefits, Discount Rate: Regional Market Issue 
This amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that market depth of high quality 
corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is 
denominated, rather than the country where the obligation is located. When there is no 
deep market for high quality corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates 
must be used. 
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• Amendment to PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting, Disclosure of Information 
'Elsewhere in the Interim Financial Report' 
The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the required interim 
disclosures must either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by cross­
reference between the interim financial statements and wherever they are included 
within the greater interim financial repo1t (e.g., in the management commentary or risk 
report). 

Standards and Interpretations Issued but not yet Effective 
Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated, 
the Group does not expect that the future adoption of the said pronouncements to have a 
significant impact on its consolidated financial statements. The Group intends to adopt the 
following pronouncements when they become effective. 

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2017 

• Amendment to PFRS 12, Clarification of the Scope of the Standard (Part of Annual 
Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle) 
The amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements in PFRS 12, other than those 
relating to summarized financial information, apply to an entity's interest in a 
subsidiary, a joint venture or an associate (or a portion of its interest in a joint venture 
or an associate) that is classified (or included in a disposal group that is classified) as 
held for sale. 

The amendments do not have any impact on the Group's financial position and results 
of operation. The Group will include the required disclosures in its 2017 consolidated 
financial statements. 

• Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows. Disclosurl! lnitialiw 
The amendments to PAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of 
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from tinancing activities, 
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign 
exchange gains or losses). On initial application of the amendments, entities are not 
required to provide comparative information for preceding periods. Early application 
of the amendments is permitted. 

Application of amendments will result in additional disclosures in the 2017 
consolidated financial statements of the Group. 

• Amendments to PAS 12, Income Taxes, Recognition (!/'Deferred Tax Assets/or 
Unrealized Losses 
The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the 
sources of taxable profits against which it may make deductions on the reversal of that 
deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on 
how an entity should determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in 
which taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets for more than their 
carrying amount. 

Entities are required to apply the amendments retrospectively. However, on initial 
application of the amendments, the change in the opening equity of the earliest 
comparative period may be recognized in opening retained earnings (or in another 
component of equity, as appropriate), without allocating the change between opening 
retained earnings and other components of equity. Entities applying this relief must 
disclose that fact. Early application of the amendments is permitted. 
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These amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Group. 

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2018 

• Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment, Class!fication and Measurement of 
Share-based Payment Transactions 
The amendments to PFRS 2 address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions 
on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the 
classification ofa share-based payment transaction with net settlement features for 
withholding tax obligations; and the accounting where a modification to the terms and 
conditions of a share-based payment transaction changes its classification from cash 
settled to equity settled. 

On adoption, entities are required to apply the amendments without restating prior 
periods, but retrospective application is permitted if elected for all three amendments 
and if other criteria are met. Early application of the amendments is permitted. 

The Group is assessing the potential effect of the amendments on its consolidated 
financial statements. 

• Amendments to PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, Applying PFRS 9, Financial 
Instruments, with PFRS 4 
The amendments address concerns arising from implementing PFRS 9, the new 
financial instruments standard before implementing the forthcoming insurance contracts 
standard. They allow entities to choose between the overlay approach and the deferral 
approach to deal with the transitional challenges. The overlay approach gives all 
entities that issue insurance contracts the option to recognize in other comprehensive 
income, rather than profit or loss, the volatility that could arise when PFRS 9 is applied 
before the new insurance contracts standard is issued. On the other hand, the deferral 
approach gives entities whose activities are predominantly connected with insurance an 
optional temporary exemption from applying PFRS 9 until the earlier of application of 
the forthcoming insurance contracts standard or January I. 2021. 

The overlay approach and the deferral approach will only be available to an entity if it 
has not previously applied PFRS 9. 
The amendments are not applicable to the Group since none of the entities within the 
Group have activities that are predominantly connected with insurance or issue 
insurance contracts. 

• PFRS 15, Revenue fi'om Contracts with Customers 
PFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from 
contracts with customers. Under PFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that 
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for 
transferring goods or services to a customer. The principles in PFRS 15 provide a more 
structured approach to measuring and recognizing revenue. 

The new revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede all current 
revenue recognition requirements under PFRSs. Either a full or modified retrospective 
application is required for annual periods beginning on or after January I, 2018. 

The Group is currently assessing the effect of PFRS 15 and plans to adopt the new 
standard on the required effective date once adopted locally. 
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• PFRS 9, Financial Instruments 
PFRS 9 reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces PAS 39, 
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measuremenl. and all previous versions of 
PFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for classification and 
measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting. PFRS 9 is effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 
January 1, 2018, with early application permitted. Retrospective application is 
required, but providing comparative information is not compulsory. For hedge 
accounting, the requirements are generally applied prospectively. with some limited 
exceptions. 

The adoption of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of 
the Group's financial assets and impairment methodology for financial assets, but will 
have no impact on the classification and measurement of the Group's financial 
liabilities. The adoption will also have an effect on the Group's application of hedge 
accounting and on the amount of its credit losses. The Group is currently assessing the 
impact of adopting this standard. 

• Amendments to PAS 28, Measuring an Associale or .!oinl Ve111ure al Fair Value (Part 
of Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle) · 
The amendments clarify that an entity that is a venture capital organization, or other 
qualifying entity, may elect, at initial recognition on an investment-by-investment basis, 
to measure its investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or 
loss. They also clarify that ifan entity that is not itself an investment entity has an 
interest in an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity, the entity may, 
when applying the equity method, elect to retain the fair value measurement applied by 
that investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment entity associate's or 
joint venture's interests in subsidiaries. This election is made separately for each 
investment entity associate or joint venture, at the later of the date on which (a) the 
investment entity associate or joint venture is initially recognized; (b) the associate or 
joint venture becomes an investment entity; and (c) the investment entity associate or 
joint venture first becomes a parent. The amendments should be applied 
retrospectively, with earlier application permitted. 

The amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Group"s consolidated 
financial statements. 

• Amendments to PAS 40, Investment Property, Transfers of Investment Property 
The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property 
under construction or development into, or out of investment property. The 
amendments state that a change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to 
meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence of the change in use. 
A mere change in management's intentions for the use of a property does not provide 
evidence of a change in use. The amendments should be applied prospectively to 
changes in use that occur on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in 
which the entity first applies the amendments. Retrospective application is only 
permitted if this is possible without the use of hindsight. 

The amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Group's consolidated 
financial statements. 

• Philippine Interpretation International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee 
(IFRIC) - 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 
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The interpretation clarifies that in determining the spot e\change ra te to use on initial 
recognition of the related asset. e:-.pen e or income (or pan o ril) on the derecognition of 
a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liabilit) relating to advance consideration. the 
date of the transaction is the date on which an entit) initial!) recognizes the 
non monetary asset or non-monetary I iabi lity arising from the ad\ ance consideration. If 
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance. then the entit) must determine a 
date of the transactions for each payment or receipt or ad' ance consideration. The 
interpretation may be applied on a full;. retrosrecti\e hasi-. l"nt itie-. ma: arrl: the 
in terpretation prospecti ve!) to all assets. expenses anu income in i t~ <,cope that are 
initially recognized on or after the beginni ng or the reporting period in "hich the ent ity 
first applies the interpretation or the beg.inning ora prior reroning period rresented as 
comparative in formation in the financial staternerllS or the reporting period in which the 
entity first applies the interpretation. 

The interpretation is not expected to ha ve an;. impact on the Group· s consolidated 
financial statements. 

Effec tive beginning on or u_/ter Ju1111w y I . 10111 

• PFRS 16, Leases 
Under the new standard. lessees will no longer classif) their lea es as either operating 
or finance leases in accordance with PA 17. L!!usl!s. Rather. lessees wi ll apply the 
single-asset model. Under this model. lessees " ill recogni ze the a sets and related 
liabilities for most leases on their balance sheets. and s ub~equellll;.. "ill depreciate the 
lease assets and recogniLe interc ton the lease liabilitie in their profit or lo s. Leases 
with a term of 12 months or less or for which the under!) ing asset is or low value are 
exempted from these requirement s. 

The accounti ng by lessors is substantial!;. unchanged as the ne" standard carries 
forward the principles of lessor accounting under i) /\S 17. Les'>ors. ho" ever. "i II be 
required to disclose more information in their financial '>tatcrnerll .., . particular!) on the 
risk exposure to residual "alue. 

Entities may early adopt PFR 16 but on!) if the) ha\e also adopted PFR 15. When 
adopting PFRS 16, an entity is permitted to use either a full retrospective or a modified 
retrospective approach, with options to use certain transition reliefs. 

The Group is current ly assessi ng the impact of adopting PFR 16. 

De/ erred ejfecti1·i1.1· 

• Amendments to PFR I 0 and PA 28. Sule or ( ·0111nh111um of .·l.1'.H' /s he111·een an 
Investor and its Associate or Joint Ve11111re 
The amendments address the connict between PFR I 0 and PA. 28 in dealing with the 
loss of control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an a sociate or joint venture. 
The amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is recogni zed \\hen a trans fer to an 
associate or joint venture involves a busine s a'> defined in PFR . .3 . B11s111ess 
CombinOlions. An) gain or loss resulting from the -.Lile or c1111trihut ion nf a set s that 
does not constitute a business, hO\H:ver. is recogniLed onl;. to the e\tcnt or unrelated 
investors' interests in the associate or joint venture. 

On January 13, 20 16, the Financial Reporting tandards Council postponed the original 
effective date of January I. 20 16 of the said amendments unti I the International 
Accounting Standards Board has completed its broader revie"" of the research project 
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on equi ty accounting that may rc!>ul t in the simpli lication ol"accm1111ing for such 
transactions and of other aspects of accounting for associate and joint ventu res. 

The amendments are not expected to have an) impact on the Group's consolidated 
financial statements 

Summary of Significant Accounting and Financial Reporting Pnl icie-. 

Presentati on of Consol idated Financial tatements 
The Group has elected to present all items of recogniLed income and C\pcnse in a separate 
statement of income and a separate statement of comprd1ensi' e income. 

Foreign Currency Transactions 
Transactions in foreign currenci es are ini tial I) recorded in the functional currency rate 
rul ing at the date of the transaction. M om:tar;. a!>~et '> and liahilitic-, dcnominutcd in foreign 
currencies are translated at the functional currenC) rate of e.\change ruling at the end of the 
financial reporting period. onmonetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost 
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates prevailing as at the date of the 
initial transactions. Nonmonetary items measured at the fair value in a foreign currency are 
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fai r value is determined. A ll 
differences are taken to 
.. Other income .. in the consolidated statement of income. 

Current versus Noncurrent Classification 
The Group presents assets and liabilit ies in the consolidated statement of financial position 
based on current/noncurrent classification. An asset is current when it is: 

Expected to be real ized or intended to be sold or con~umed in normal operating cycle; 
Held primarily for the purpose of trading: 
Expected to be reali zed within twelve months alh:r the encl of the linancial reporting 

period; or 
Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being e:1.changed or used to settle a 

li abi lity for at least twelve months after the end of the linancial reporting period. 

All other assets are class ified as noncu rrent. 

A liabi lity is current when: 
It is expected to be settled in normal operating c: cle: 
It is held primarily for the purpose of trad ing; 
It is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the financial reporting 

period; or 
There is no unconditional right to defer the sett lement of the liabili ty for at least twelve 
months after the end of the financial reporting period. 

The Group classi fies all other liabilities as noncurre111. 

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities arc netted in the consolidated 
statement of financial position under noncurrent items. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash includes cash on hand and in banl..s. Cash in bank~ earn intcrc!>t at lloating rates based 
on daily bank deposit rate. 
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Cash equivalents are short-term. highl y liquid investment s that are readil ) co nvertible to 
known amounts of cash with original maturitie of three months or less and are subject to 
an insignificant risk of change in value. 

Financial Instruments - Initial Recogni tion and ubseguent Measurement 
Date of Recognition 
The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liabilit) in the consolidated statement 
of financial position when it becomes a part) to the contractual pn)\ i\ions or the 
instrument. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require deliver) or assets within a 
time frame established by regulation or convention in the mar!.. ct place (regular way trades) 
are recognized on the trade date. 

lniual Recognition and Measurement of Financial /11str111111!11ts 
The Group determines the classification of financial instruments at initial recogn ition and 
where allowed and appropriate. re-evaluates th is designation at ever~ end of the financial 
reporting period. 

Financial instruments are recogn ized in it ial! ) at fair value. Direct I) attributable transaction 
costs are included in the initial measurement of all financial assets and financial liabilities. 
except for financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL). 

Financial Assets 
Financial assets within the scope of PA 39. F111w1cwl /11.1t1w11l!11t.1 Rt:rng111tum and 
Measurement, are classified into the following categorii:s: financial as!.ets at FYPL. loans 
and receivables, held-to-maturit ) (HTM) investments. and a\ailable-foHalc (A FS) 
financial assets or as deri vati ves designated as hedging instrumi:nts in an dlective hedge, as 
appropriate. The classification depends on the purpm.e for" hich the investments were 
acquired and whether they are quoted in an acti ve market. 

The Group's financial assets are in the nature of loan and receivables and AF financial 
assets. As at December 3 I.20 16 and 2015. the Group ha.., no financi ;1I a\\ct s at FVPL and 
HTM investments or deri vati ves designated as hedgi ng instru ments in an effective hedge. 

Financial liabilities 
Also under PAS 39, financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at FVPL, 
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effecti ve hedge, or as loans and 
borrowings. The Group determines the classification at initial recognition and, where 
allowed and appropriate, 
re-evaluates such designati on at every financial reporting date. 

Financial instruments arc classified as liabilities or equit~ in accordance" ith the substance 
of the contractual agreement. Interest, dividends. gai ns and losses rcli:ning to a financial 
instrument or a component that is a financi al liabilit). ari: rcporti:d as e\penses or income. 
Di stributions to holders of financial instruments classified as equit) are charged directly to 
equity, net of any rel ated income tax benefits. 

The Group's financial liabi li ties are in the nature of loans and botTO\vings as at 
December 3 I.2016 and 2015. The Group has no financial liabtlitie.., cla<>si lied at FVPL and 
deri vati ves designated as hedging instrument in an ellecti \ e hedge a~ at Di:cember 31, 
20 16 and 20 I 5. 
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Fair Value Measurement 
The Group measures AF financial as ets and investment propl.'rtie">. at foir \alue at each 
end of reporting period. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either: 

• in the principal market for the asset or liability. or 
• in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 

liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market mu t be accessible to by the Group. The 
fair va lue of an asset or a liability is measured using the a::.sumption'> that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or li abi lit~ . a suming that market participants 
act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement ofa nonfinancial asset takes into account a market participant's 
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by 
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Group uses valuat ion techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for 
which sufficient data are avai lable to measure fair •alue. ma:-.irniLing the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimi zing the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial 
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy. described as follows. based on 
the lowest level input that is sign ificant to the fai r \aluc measurement as a whole: 

• Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities 

• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for \\ hich the IO\\CSl level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement is directly or indirect!) obsenable 

• Level 3 - Valuation tech niques fo r which the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recogniLed in the consolidated linam:ial -.tatl.!ments on a 
recu rring basis, the Group determines whether transfe r"> have occurred bl.!t\veen Levels in 
the hierarchy by re-assessi ng categorization (based on the I<)\\ est k•cl input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) al the end or each report ing peri od. 

An anal ysis of the fair values of AFS financial assets and investment properties and further 
details as to how they are measured are provided in ote 23. 

"Day I " Difference 
Where the transaction price in anon-active market is different from the fair value based on 
other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or ba cd on a valuation 
technique whose variable include only data from obser•able market. the Group recognizes 
the difference between the transaction price and fair value ta Da) I difference) in the 
consolidated statement of income unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of 
asset. In cases where use is made of data which is not observable. the difference between 
the transaction price and model value is onl) recogni zed in the consolidated statement of 
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income when the inputs become observable or\\ hen the in trument is derecognized . For 
each transaction, the Group determ ines the appror riate method o frecogni 7ing ··o a) I'" 
difference amount. 

Subsequent Measurement 
The subsequent measurement of financial assets and liabi Ii tie'> derends on their 
classification as fo l lows: 

Loans and Receivables 
Loans and receivables are non-derivati ve fin ancial assets \\i th li:-..cd or determinable 
payments and fi xed maturit ies that are not quoted in an acti ve market. They arise when the 
Group provides money, goods or services di rectly to a debtor with no intention of trading 
the receivables. After in itial measurement, such financi al assets are subsequently measured 
in the consolidated statement of fi nancial positi on at amorti7ed cost using the effecti ve 
interest rate (EIR) method. less any provision for imrairment. /\ mor1 i7ed cost is ca lculated 
by taki ng into account any discount or premium on acquisit ion and fee or costs that are an 
integral part of EIR. The amort ization losses arising from impairment are recognized in the 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income \\hen the loans and receivables are 
derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amort ization process. 

Loans and receivables are included in current assets if maturi t) is \\ ithin twelve ( 12) 
months from the fi nanc ial reporting date. Othern be. these arc classi lied as noncurrent 
assets. 

AFS Financial Assets 
AFS financial assets include investments in equ ity and debt securities. Equity investments 
classified as AFS financial assets are those which are nei ther classified as held for trading 
nor designated at FVPL. Debt securities in thi s categor) are those which are intended to be 
held for an indefini te period of time and which ma) be sold in re;: ponse to needs for 
liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions. 

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are ubsequentl) measured at fair value 
with unrealized gains or losses recogni zed in the consolidated statement of comprehensive 
income in the net unrealized gain on changes in fai r value or AF li nancial assets until the 
investment is derecognized, at which time the cum ulative gain or loss is recognized in profi t 
or loss, or determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative loss is reclassified to the 
profit or loss and removed from OCI. 

The Group eval uated its AFS fi nancial assets \\ hethcr the a bil it ~ and intention to sell them 
in the near term is sti II appropri ate. When the Group is unable to trade these fin ancial 
assets due to inactive markets and management's intention to do so significantly changes in 
the foreseeable future, the Group may elect to reclassi I) these financial assets in rare 
circu mstances. Reclass ification to loans and recei vables is permi tted \\hen the fi nancial 
assets meet the defin ition of loans and receivable and the Grour ha-, the intent and ability 
to hold these assets for the foreseeable fu ture or unti l maturit~ . Reclass ilication to the 
HTM category is permi tted onl y when the entit) has the abil i t ~ and intention to hold the 
financial asset accordingly. 

For a fi nancial asset rec lassified out of the AFS fi nancial assets categor). any prev ious gain 
or loss on that asset that has been recognized in equity is amort ized to profit or loss over the 
remaining life of the investment using the EIR. Any difference between the new amortized 
cost and the expected cash flows is also amort ized over the rem ain ing life of the asset using 
the EIR . If the asset is subsequent!) determined to b..: impaired. then the amount recorded 
in equity is reclassified to the profi t or loss. 
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As at December 31, 2016and201 5, included under AF financial assets are the Group's 
investments in shares of stock and government bonds. 

Loans and Borrowings 
Issued financial instrument or their components'' hich arc not clt:'>ignatcd as at FV PL are 
classified as loans and borrowings, where the substance of the cont ractual arrangement 
results in the Group hav ing an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to 
the holder, or to satisfy the obligati on other than by the exchange ofa fi xed amou nt of cash 
or another financial asset for a fi xed nu mber of own equity shares. 

The components of issued financial instruments that contain both liabilit) and equity 
elements are accounted for separately. wi th the equit~ compom:nt being as igned the 
residua l amount after deducting from the in !>trumcnt a~ a ''hole. th\.' a11wu111 s.l.'paratd) 
determined as the fair value of the liability component on the date or i-,suc. 

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost 
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income when the liabi lities are derecognized as well as through the EIR 
amortization process. 

Amortized cost is calculated b) tai..ing into account an) di~count or premium on acquisition 
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amort izati on shall be 
included in other charges in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. 

Loans and borrowings are included in current liabilities. irscttlement is to bi: made within 
twelve ( 12) months from the financial reporting date. Othcnvise. these are classi fied as 
noncurrent I iabili ti es. 

As at December 3 1, 20 16 and 2015, included in loans and borrO\\ ing. are the Group's 
accounts payable and accrued expenses and div idends pa) able. 

Impairment of Financial Assets 
The Group assesses, at each reporting date,'' hether thi.:r..: i!> objccti\..: C\ id..:ncc that a 
financial asset or a group of financia l assets is impaired. An impairment e\ists if one or 
more events that has occurred since the initial recognition or the as i.:t (an incurred ·loss 
event '), has an impact on the estimated future cash llO\\ S. or the financial a-.sct or the group 
of financi al assets that can be reliably estimated. 

Evidence of impairment may include indicati ons that the debtors or a group of debtors is 
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal 
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financ ial reorgan ization 
and observable data indicating that there is a measurable dt>crcasc in th..: estimated future 
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions. that correlate with default s. 

loans and Receivables 
For fi nancial assets carried at amortized cost. the Group first assesses individually whether 
objective evidence of impairment ex ists individually for fi nancial assets that are 
individually significant, or collecti vely for financial assets that are not individ ually 
significant. If the Group determines that no objective e1.- idence or impairment exists for 
individually assessed financia l assets. \\hether signiticant or not. it indud..: the asset in a 
group of financial assets with s imilar credit risi.. characteris.tic and colkcti\ ely assesses for 
impairment. Those characteristics are re levant to the e~timation or fu ture cash !lows for 
groups of such assets by being indi cati ve of the debtors· abi I ity to pay al I amou nts due 
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according to the contractual terms of the assets being e\aluated. Assets that are 
individually assessed for impairment and for which an im pairment loss is. or continues to 
be, recognized are not included in a collective assessment ror impairment. 

If there is objective evidence that an impai rment loss on a:.sets carried at amorti zed cost has 
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excl uding future 
expected credi t losses that have not been incurred) discou nted at the fi nancial asset's 
original effecti ve interest rate (i.e., the effecti ve interest rate computed at ini tial 
recognition). The present value of the estimated future cash tlows is discounted at the 
financial assets' original EIR. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced th rough the use 
of an al lowance account. The amount of impairment loss shall be recognized in 
consolidated statement of income. 

lfin a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can 
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the 
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the carrying va lue of 
the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date. Any subsequent reversal of 
an impairment loss is recognized in conso lidated statement of comprehensive income. 

In relation to receivables, a provision for impairmen t is made \\ hen there is objecti ve 
evidence (such as the probability of inso lvency or significant financial difficulties of the 
debtor) that the Group will not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the original 
terms of the invoice. The carrying amount of the receivable is reduced through the use of 
an all owance account. Impaired receivables are derecogni?C·d \\·hen they nrc nsse<;sed as 
uncol lectible. 

Assers Carried at Cost 
If there is objective evidence of impairment loss on an unquoted equi ty instrument that is 
not carried at fai r value, or on a derivati ve asset that is li nked to and must be sett led by 
deli very of such an unquoted equity instrument, the an1ount of the loss is measured as the 
difference between the asset 's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future 
cash fl ows discounted at the current market rate of return for J :. i111 iL1r fi11a1i..: ial a:.set. 

AFS Financial Assets 
For AFS financial assets, the Group assesse at each reporting date \\ht'ther there is 
objective evidence that a financi al asset or group of financial assets is impaired. 

In case of equi ty investmen ts classified as AFS financial assets, th is would include a 
significant or prolonged decline in the fair va lue of the investments below its cost. The 
determination of what is .. significant"· or ··prolonged· · re4u1re:.j udgme1ll . I he liroup treats 
"significant" as 20% or more and .. prolonged .. as greater th an twelve ( 12) months for 
quoted equity securit ies. Where there is evidence of impairment. the cum ulative loss 
measu red as the difference between the acquisit ion co t and the current fair \a lue, less any 
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recogn ized in consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income is removed from OCI and recogn ized in consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income. 

Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed th rough profit or loss. Increases 
in fair value after impairment are recogni zed directl) in equit~ . 

In the case of debt instruments classi fi ed as AFS financial a:.:.ets. impai rment is assessed 
based on the same criteria as financial assets carried at amorti zed cost. Interest contin ues to 
be accrued at the original effective interest rate on the reduced carrying amount of the asset 
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and is recorded as a component of ··Other im:um.::·· dt:<.:uu111 111 the: u>1 1:>ul 1d<1tt:d ::.tatt:lllt:lll uf 
comprehensive income. If. subsequently. the fair \alue ofa debt instrument increases and 
the increase can be objectivel) related to an e-..cnt occurring alh:r the 1111pairmc:nt loss \vas 
recognized in consolidated profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. 

Offsening of Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the 
consolidated statement of financial position if. and only if. there is a currentl y enforceable 
legal right to offset the recogni zed amounts and there is an intent ion to settle on a net basis, 
or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneous!). This is not generally the case 
with master netting agreements, and the related assets and liabil it ies are presented gross in 
the consolidated statement of financial position . 

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Financial l.iabilitiec; 
Financial Assers 
A financial asset (or. where applicable. a ran ofa financ ial ac;c;et or ran ofa grour of 
similar financial assets) is derecognized when: 

• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; 
• the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed 

an obligation to pay the received cash flows in ful l without material delay to a third 
party under a 'pass-through· arrangement ; and either (a) the Group has transferred 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. or (b) the Group has neither 
transferred nor retained substantiall y all the risks and re\\ards of the asset. but has 
transferred control of the asset. 

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has 
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the ri sks and rewards of the asset nor 
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recogni zed to the extent of the Group' s 
continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing ill\ohem.::111 that take~ the lonn ol a 
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the I°'' er or the original carrying amount 
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to 
repay. 

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a wrinen and/or purchased option 
(i ncluding a cash-settled option or simi lar provision) on the tran sferred asset, the extent of 
the Group's continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the Group 
may repurchase, except that in the case ofa \\rittcn put upti on (111cludi11g" ca::. h-::.cttku 
option or sim ilar provision) on an asset measured at fair value. the e'\tent of the Group's 
continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair val ue o f the transferred asset and 
the option exercise price. 

Financial Liabilities 
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. 

When an existing financial liabilit) i replaced b~ another from the 1,ame kndcr on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an exi sting I iabi lit) are sub tantiall) modi tied, 
such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and 
the recognition ofa new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is 
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. 
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Prepayments are expenses paid in advance and recorded as asset before they are utilized. 
This account comprises prepaid rentals and insurance premiums and other prepaid items. 
The prepaid rental s and insurance premiums and other prepaid items are apportioned over 
the period covered by the payment and charged to the appropriate accounts in profit or loss 
when incurred. 

Prepayments that are expected to be real ized for no more than twelve (I~) months after the 
reporting period are class ified as current assets othern i:,e. the:,e are da:,:,i liec.l a:, other 
noncurrent assets. 

Value-added Tax (VAT) 
Revenue, expenses, assets and liabi lities are recognized net of the amount of VAT, except 
where the VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or serv ices is not recoverable from the 
taxation authority, in which case the VAT is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of 
the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable. 

VAT is stated at twelve percent ( 12%) of the applicable purchase cost of goods or services, 
net of output tax I iabi Ii ties. The net amount of VAT recoverable from or payable to, the 
taxation authority is included as part of .. Prepayments and other current assets" or 
"Accounts payable and accrued expenses, .. respect i\ el) . in the consolidated statement of 
fi nancial position. 

Investment Properties 
Investment properties, consisting of parcels of land owned by the Group, are measured 
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognit ion, investment 
properties are stated at fa ir value, which renects market conditions at the reponing date. 
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fai r values of investment properties are included 
in consolidated profit or loss in the year in wh ich they arise. 

Investment properties are derecognized when either the) have been disposed of or when the 
investment property is permanent I) "ithdra" n from use anc.l no future economic benefit is 
expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses from derecognition of an investment 
property are recognized in conso lidated profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal. 

Deferred Exploration Costs 
All explorat ion and eval uation costs incurred in connection ''i th the participation of the 
Group in the determination of tech ni cal feasibilit) anc.l as essmen t of commercial viabili ty 
of an identified resource are capitalized and accounted for under the ··successfu I efforts 
method'' [determined on the basis of each Service Contract l~C) ueoph) :,irnl Survey and 
Exploration Contract]. These costs include materials and fuel used, surveying costs, 
drilling costs and payments made to contractors. 

Once the legal right to explore has been acquired. costs direct I~ associated with an 
exploration and evaluation are capitalized and amoniLed at the start of commercial 
operations. All such capital ized costs are subject 10 technical. commt:rcial and management 
review, as well as review for indicators of impairment at least once a year. This is to 
confirm the continued intent to develop or otherwise extract val ue from the discovery. 
When an SC is permanently abandoned, all related capi talized exploration costs are written­
off. SCs are considered permanently abandoned ifthe Cs have expired and/or ifthere are 
no definite plans for further exploration and/or development. 
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Property and Equipment 
Property and equipment. other than office condominium. are carried at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and amortization and an) impairment in value. 

Office condominium is carried at revalued amount less depreciation and any impairment in 
value charged subsequent to the date of the revaluation. Valuations are performed 
frequently enough to ensure that the fair value of re,alued as et does not di ff er materially 
from its carrying amount. 
Any revaluation increment is credited to the .. Revaluati on increment in office 
condominium" account in the equity section of the consolidated '>taternen t" of financial 
position, net of the related deferred income tax liability. An annual transfer from the 
"Revaluation increment in office condominium"' account to retained earn ings is made for 
the difference between the depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset 
and the depreciation based on the asset·s original cost. Additionall y. accumulated 
depreciation at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carr) ing amount of the 
asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the a"set. Upon disposal. any 
revaluation increment relating to the particular asset sold is transferred to retained earnings. 

The initial costs of property and equipment consist of their purchase price and any directly 
attributable costs of bringing the assets to their working condition and location for their 
intended use. Expenditures incurred after the property and equipment have been put into 
operation, such as repairs and maintenance costs, are recognized in profit or loss in the year 
in which costs are incurred. 

In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an 
increase in future economic benefi ts expected to be ohtaincJ from the ll"l.' 1ifa11 item of 
property and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the 
expenditures are capital ized as an additional cost of property and equipment. Major 
maintenance and major overhaul costs that are capitalized as part of property and equipment 
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives, 
typically the period until the next major maintenance or in-;pection. 

Depreciation and amortization is computed using the straight-line method to allocate the 
related assets· cost to their estimated useful Ii\ e:.. The ..innual rate:. 01° Jepreciati0n for each 
category are based on the following useful lives of related assets: 

Office condominium 
Building and building improvements 
Machinery and equipment 
Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 
Transportation equipment 

Number of Years 
15 
15 
10 
3 
5 

The assets' estimated usefu l lives and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to 
ensure that these are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefi ts from the 
items of property and equipment. 

Depreciation of property and equipment begins when it becomes a\ailable for use, i.e., 
when it is in the location and condition nece sary for it to he capable of operating in the 
manner intended by management. 

Depreciation ceases when assets are full y depreciated or at earlier of the date that line item is 
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale) in 
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accordance with PFRS 5, Noncurrent Assets Heldf(>r Sule und Disco111i1111ed Operations, and the 
date the item is derecognized. 

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of. their cost. accumulated depreciation and 
any allowance for impairment loss are eliminated from the accounts and an y gain or loss 
resulting from their disposal is included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive 
income. 

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no futu re 
economic benefi ts are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or 
loss arising on derecognit ion of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) i~ included in the consolidated 
statement of comprehensive income in the year the item is derecognized. 

Ful ly-depreciated assets are retained in the accounts unti l they are no longer in use and no 
further depreciation is charged to operations. 

Intangible asset 
Accounting Software 
Acquired accounting software is capitali zed on the basis of costs incurred to acquire and 
bring to use the specific software. Costs associated wi th the development or maintenance 
of accounting software programs are recogni zed as e\pense \\hen incurred. 

Other Noncurrent Assets 
This account comprises goodwill and receivables. Other current assets that are expected to 
be realized for more than twelve ( 12) months after the end o r the report ing period are 
classified as noncurrent assets, otherwise. these are classified as other current assets. 

Impairment ofNonfinancial Assets 
Property and Equipment and Other Noncurrent . .J.ssets 
The Group assesses at each repo11ing period whether there is an indication that an asset may 
be impaired. If any such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the 
estimated recoverable amounts, the assets or cash generating unit (CGU) are written down 
to their estimated recoverable amounts. The estimated recoverable amount of an asset is the 
greater of the fair value less cost to se ll and value in u::.e . lh: fair \alue k~::. rn~1 10 ~e ll i ~ 

the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm·s-length transaction less the costs 
of disposal whil e value in use is the present value or est imated futu re cash flows expected 
to arise from the continuing use or an asset and from its cfoposal at the end or its usefu l Ii re. 
In assessing val ue in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value 
of money and the risks speci fi c to the asset. For an asset that does nol generate largely 
independent cash inflows, the esti mated recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to 
which the asset belongs. Impairment losses of cominu ing operat ion~ are recogn ized in the 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in those expense categories consistent 
with the function of the impaired asset. 

An assessment is made al each financial reporting date" hether there is an y indication that 
previously recogni zed im pairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If 
such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previous ly recogn ized 
impai rment loss is reversed by a credit to current operations (unless the asset is carried at a 
revalued amount in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is credited to the 
revaluation increment of the same asset) 10 the extent that it does not restate the asset to a 
carrying amount in excess of what wou ld have been determined (net of any accumulated 
depreciation) had no impai rment loss been recognized fo r the asset in prior years. Such 
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reversal is recognized in consolidated statement of comprehensive income unless the asset 
is carried at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. 
After such reversal. the amortization charge is adjusted in future period to allocate the 
asset 's revised carrying amount, less any residual value. on S) stematic basis over its 
remaining useful life. 

Prepayments and Other Current Asset~ 
The Group provides provis ion for impairment losses on nontinancial prepayments and other 
current assets when they can no longer be realized . The amounts and timing of recorded 
expenses for any period would differ if the Group made different judgments or utilized 
different estimates. An increase in provision for i111pairn1ent lo~~e~ \10Lild increase recorded 
expenses and decrease prepayments and other current and noncurrent assets. 

Recovery of impairment losses recognized in prior year is recorded \I hen there is an 
indication that the impai rment losses recognized for the asset no longer e\ist or have 
decreased. The recovery is recorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive 
income. However, the increased carrying amount of an asset due to a recovery of an 
impairment loss is recognized to the extent it does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined (net of depreciation and amortiLation) had no impairment loss 
been recognized for that asset in prior years. 

Deferred Exploration Costs 
The Group assesses at each reporting period whether there is an indication that its deferred 
exploration costs and project development costs may be impaired. If any indication exists, 
or when an annual impairment testing for such items is requi red. the Group makes an 
estimate of their recoverable amount. An asset's recoverahle amount is the higher of an 
asset 's or CGU's fa ir va lue less costs to sell and its value in use. and is determined for an 
individual item, unless such item does not generate cash inllO\I S that are largely 
independent of those from other assets or group of asset or CG s. When the carryi ng 
amount exceeds its recoverable amount, such item is considered impaired and is written 
down to its recoverab le amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated futu re cash flows 
to be generated by such items are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount 
rate that reflects the current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset or CGU. 

Impairment losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of income. 

Capital Stock and Additiona l Paid-in Capital 
Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued and outstanding. When the 
Group issues more than one class of stock, a separate account is maintained for each class 
of stock and number of shares issued and outstanding. 

When the shares are sold at a premium, the difference between the proceeds and the par 
value is credited to the .. Additional paid-in capital .. account. When shares arc issued for a 
consideration other than cash. the proceeds are measured b~ the fair 'al ue of the 
consideration received. Jn case the shares are issued to extinguish or settle the liabili ty of 
the Group, the shares shall be measured either at the fair value of the shares issued or fai r 
value of the liability sett led, whichever is more reliably determinable. 

Deposits for Future Stock Subscription 
This pertains to the amount of cash and advances from stockholders as pa) ment for future 
issuance of stocks. The Group classifies a deposit for future stock subscripti on as an equity 
instrument if it satisfies al I of the fol lowing elements: 
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• the unissued authorized capital stock of the entity is insufficient to cover the amount of 
shares indicated in the contract; 

• there is BOD approval on the proposed increasr.: in authoriLed capital '>lock 
(for which a deposit was received by the corporation): 

• there is stockholders' approval of said proposed increase: and 
• the application for the approval of the proposed increase has been ti led wi th the EC. 

If any or all of the foregoing elements are not present. the deposit for future stock 
subscription shall be recogni zed as a liability. 

Retained Earnings 
The amount included in retai ned earn ings includes profi t (loss) a11 ributable to the Paren t 
Company's stockholders and reduced b) dividends. Di•idends are rr.:cogniLed as a liability 
and deducted from equity when they are approved by the Parent Compan) ·s BOD. 
Di vidends for the period that are approved after the end of the Ii nancial report ing date are 
dealt with as an event after the financia l reporting period. Retained earnings may also 
include the effect of changes in accounti ng policy as may be required by the accounting 
standard's transi tional provisions. 

Other Comprehensive Income 
Other comprehensive loss comprises items of income and expense (including items 
previously presented under the consol idated statement of changes in equity) that are not 
recognized in the consolidated statement of income for the year in accordance wi th PFRS. 

Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) 
Basic EPS 
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the net income att ributable to ord inary equity 
holders of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of ord inary shares 
outstanding, after givi ng retroacti ve effect for an) stoc k di•idends. stock splits or reverse 
stock splits during the year. 

Diluted EPS 
Di luted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the net income anributable to ord inary 
equity holders of the Parent Company by the weighteci <l\erage number of ordinary shares 
outstanding, adjusted for an) stock di•idend~ dr.:l'lared during the ~eJr plu~ "eighted 
average num ber of ordi nary shares that would be i sued on the comerc;ion of all the dil uti ve 
ordi nary shares into ord inary shares, excluding treasur") shares. 

Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is recogni zed when it is probable that the economic benefi ts associated with the 
transaction will flow to the enterprise and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, 
regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received, net of discounts. The Group assesses its n~Yenue arrangements 
against specific criteria in order to determine if it is act ing as a principal or agent. The 
fo llowing specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized: 

Interest Income 
Interest income is recognized as the interest accrues, taking into account the effect ive yield 
on the asset. 

Dividend Income 
Di vidend income is recogn ized when the Group·s right to receive pa) ment is established. 
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General and Administrative Expenses 
General and administrative expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the 
accounting period in the form ofoutflows or occurrences of liabiliti es that result in decreases 
in equity, other than those relating to distributions 10 equit~ panicipants. General and 
administrative expenses are generall y recognized when the <;ervice<; are used or the expense 
arises while interest expenses are accrued in the appropriate financial reporting date. 

Leases 
Determination of Whether an Arrangement Contains a l ease 
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the 
substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfi ll ment of the 
arrangement is dependent on the use of a speci tic asset or assets and the arrangement 
conveys a right to use the asset. 

A reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the fo llowing app lies: 
a. There is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the 
arrangement; 
b. A renewal option is exercised or exten sion granted. unless that term of the renewal or 

extension was initially included in the lease term; 
c. There is a change in the determination of whether f'ulli ll ment is dependent on a 

speci tied asset; or 
d. There is a substantial change to the asset. 

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date 
when the change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a). (c) or (d) 
above, and at the date of renewal or extension period for scenario ( b ). 

Operating l eases - Group as a l essee 
Operating leases represent those leases under wh ich substantial ly a ll ri sks and rewards of 
ownership of the leased assets remains with the lessors. oncancellable operating lease 
payments are recognized under "General and administrat ive expenses .. in the consolidated 
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-I ine basis over the lease term. 

Retirement Benefits Costs 

The net retirement benefits liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the 
retirement benefit obligation at the end of the financial reporti ng date reduced by the fai r 
value of plan assets (if any), adjusted for an) dkct of Ii 111i1i11g a Ill'! deli 111.'.d bl.'.nefi 1 asset to 
the asset cei ling. The asset ceiling is the present value of any economic benefits available 
in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future cont ributions to the plan. 

The cost of providing benefi ts under the ret irement bend it plans is actuaria lly determined 
using the projected unit credit method. 

Retirement benefit costs comprise the following: 
• Service cost 
• Net interest on the net retirement benefit liability or asset 
• Remeasurements of net retirement benefit I iability or asset 

Service costs which include current service costs, past serv ice costs and gains or losses on 
non-routine settlements are recognized as expense in pro lit or loss. Past service costs are 
recognized when plan amendment or curtailment occurs. These amounts are calcu lated 
periodicall y by independent qual ified actuaries. 
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Net interest on the net retirement benefit li abil ity or asset is the change during the period in 
the net retirement benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is 
determined by applying the discount rate based on government bo nds to the net retirement 
benefi t liability or asset. Net interest on the net retirement benefit liabi li ty or asset is 
recognized as expense or income in consolidated statement of income. 

Remeasurements compri sing actuarial gai ns and losses, return on plan assets and any 
change in the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on reti rement benefit 
liabili ty) are recognized immediately in OCI in the period in \~hich they arise. 
Remeasurements are not reclass ified to profi t or loss in subsequent periods. 
Remeasurements recognized in OCI aft er the initi al adopt ion of Rev ised PAS 19 are not 
closed to retained earnings account. These are retai ned in OC I until fu ll sett lement of the 
liability. 

Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee bene fi t fund or quali fy ing 
insurance policies. Plan assets are not avai lable to the credi tors of the Group, nor can they 
be paid directly to the Group. Fair value of plan assets is based on market price 
information. When no market price is ava ilable, the fa ir value of plan assets is estimated by 
discounting expected fut ure cash fl ows using a discoun t rate that re fl ects both the risk 
associated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected d isposal date of those assets 
(or, if they have no maturity, the expected period until the settlement of the related 
obl igations). If the fai r value of the pl an assets is higher than thl.' present \alue of the 
reti rement benefit obligation, the measurement of the result ing retirement benefit asset is 
limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the 
plan or reductions in future co ntributions to the plan. 

The Group's right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expend iture requi red to sett le a 
retirement benefi t obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fai r value when and only 
when reimbursement is virtuall y certain. 

Termination Benefl1 
Termination benefits are employee benefi ts provided in exchange for the termi nation of an 
employee's employment as a result of either an entity's decision to terminate an employee's 
employment before the normal reti rement date or an employee' s decision to accept an offer 
of benefits in exchange for the termination of employment. 

A li ability and expense for a termination benefi t is recognized at the earl ier of when the 
entity can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefi ts and when the entity recognizes 
related restructuring costs. Initial recognition and subsequent changes to termination 
benefits are measured in accordance with the nature of the employee benefi t. as either post­
employment benefits, short-term employee bene fit s. or other long-term employee benefits. 

Employee Leave Emitlement 
Employee enti tlements to annual leave are recogni zed as a I iabil ity when they are accrued 
to the employees. The und iscounted liabil ity for leave expected to be settled wholly before 
twelve ( 12) months after the end of the ti nancial report ing period is recognized for services 
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period. 

Income Taxes 
Current Income Tax 
Current income tax assets and li abil ities for the current and prior periods are measured at 
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorit ies. The tax rates 
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and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the financial report ing date. 

Current income tax relating to items recognized directl y in the consolidated statement of 
changes in equity is recognized in equity and not in profit or loss. Management 
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns'' ith respect 10 si tuations in which 
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where 
appropriate. 

Deferred income Tax 
Deferred income tax is provided, using the liabili ty method. on all temporary differences at 
the fi nancial reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabi li ties and their carrying 
amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred income la" liabilities are recogni zed for 
all taxable temporary differences, except : 

• where the deferred income tax li ability arises from the initial recognition of goodwi ll or 
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business co mbination and, at the time 
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable income or loss; 

• in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, 
associates and interests in joint ventures, where the tim ing oft he reversal of the 
temporary differences can be controlled and it i<; rrohahlc that the temrorary 
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable fu ture. 

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporar) differences, 
carryforward benefits of unused tax cred its from excess 111ini111u111 corporate income tax 
(MCIT) over the regular corporate income tax (RCI T) and unused net operating loss carry­
over (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that sufficient fut ure taxable profits will be 
avai lable against which the deductible temporary differences and the carryforward benefits 
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utiliLcd. C\ccpl: 

• where the deferred income tax asset re lat ing to the deductible temporary difference 
ar ises from the in itial recognition of an asset or I iabi I it) in a transact ion that is not a 
business combination and, at the time of the transaction. affects neither the accounting 
income nor taxable income or loss; 

• in respect of deductible temporary differences associated wi th investments in 
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deterred income tax assets are 
recogn ized onl y to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will 
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable income will he available against which the 
temporary differences can be utili zed . 

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each fin ancial reporting 
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable 
profits wil l be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized. 
Unrecognized deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each fi nancial reporting date and 
are recognized to the extent that it has become probable 1ha1 sufficien t fu ture taxable pro fits 
will be avai lab le to allow the deferred income tax assets 10 bl' rt>cn•t> red. 

Deferred income tax assets and li abilities are measured at the tax rate that is expected to 
apply to the period when the asset is real ized or the liability is settl ed, based on the tax rate 
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the fi nancial reporting date. 
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabi lities are offset if a kgall) enforceable right ex ists 
to set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the delerred taxes 
relate to the same taxable enti ty and the same taxation authority. 

Segment 1 n formation 
The Group considers investment holding and geothermal energy projects as its primary 
acti viti es. The Group has no geographical segmentation as the Group's operating business 
segments are neither organized nor managed by geographical segment. 

Provisions 
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as 
a result of a past event, it is probable that an out no'"' of resoun:es embody ing economic 
benefits wil l be requ ired to settle the obligation and a reliable esti mate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. 

Contingencies 
Contingent liabi lities are not recognized in the consoli dated financ ial statements. These are 
disclosed un less the possibil ity of an outflow of economic benefits is remote. Contingent 
assets are not recogn ized in the consolidated financial statements but disclosed when an 
inflow of economic benefi t is probable. 

Events After the Reporting Date 
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group·s posi tion at the 
end of the reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected in the Group·s conso lidated 
financial statements. Post year-end events that are not adjusti ng events are di sclosed in the 
notes to the consolidated financial statements when material. 

Significa nt Accountin g Jud gments, Estimates a nd Assu mptio ns 

The preparation of the consolidated financia l statements in compli ance wit h PFRS requires 
management to make judgments and esti mates that affect the amounts repo11ed in the 
consolidated financial statements. The judgments and estimates used in the consolidated 
financial statements are based upon management 's eval uati on of relevant facts and 
circumstances as of the date of the conso lidated financial statements. Future events may 
occur which can cause the assumptions used in arriving at those j udgrm:nts and esti mates to 
change. The effects of the changes will be reflected in the conso lidated fi nancial statements 
as they become reasonably determi nable. 

Accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated based on 
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

Judgments 
In the process of applying the Group's account ing policies. management has made the 
following judgments, apart from those involving estimations. which have the most 
significant effect on amoun ts recognized in the consolidated linancial statements: 

Reserves Estimation 
The Group estimates its commercial reserves and resources based on information compi led 
by appropriately qualified persons relating to the geological and technical data on the size, 
depth, shape and grade of the hydrocarbon body and suitable product ion techniques and 
recovery rates. 
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Determination of the Group's Functional Currency 
Based on the economic substance of the underlying circumstances relevant to the Group, 
the functional currency has been determined to be the Phili ppine Peso. It is the currency 
that mainly influences the operations of the Group. 

Classification of Financial Instruments 
The Group classifies a financial instrument, or its component. on initial recognition as a 
financial asset, liability or equity instrument in accordance wi th the substance of the 
contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial asset, I iabi lity or equity 
instrument. The substance of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form. governs its 
classification in the consolidated statements of fin ancial position. 

Determination of Classification of fnl'est111em !'rop<!l'ty 
The Group classifies its land and improvements as investment property or owner-occupied 
property based on its current intentions where it will be used. When the land and 
improvements are held for capital appreciation or when management is sti 11 undecided as to 
its future use, it is classified as investment property. The land and improvements which are 
held for rent are classified as investment property. 

Capitalization of Geothermal Exploration and Evaluat ion ( 'o.1·ts 
Careful judgment of management is applied when deciding" hether the rc:cognition 
requirements for geothermal exploration and evaluation assets relating to the Group' s 
geothermal project have been met. Capitalization of these costs is based. to a certain extent, 
on management's judgment of the degree to which the ex penditure may be associated wi th 
finding specific geothermal reserve. This is necessary as the economic success of the 
exploration is uncertain and may be subject to future technical problems at the time of 
recognition. Judgments are based on the information available at end of each reporting 
period . 

Estimates and Assumptions 
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewt>d on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised ifthe 
revisions affect only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods ifthe 
revi sion affects both current and future periods. 

The key assumptions concern ing the future and other kl:~ "flttrce<; of e<>t irnat ion uncertainty 
at the reporting date that have a signifi cant risk of causing a material adjust ment to the 
carrying amounts of asset and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below: 

Impairment of A FS Financial Assets 
The Group treats AFS financial assets as impaired when there has been a significant or 
prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or where other objective evidence of 
impairment exists. The determination of what is "sign ifi cant" or "prolonged" requires 
judgment. The Group treats "signi ficant" as 20°u or more nf'the rn!> t anJ "prolonged" as 
greater than twelve ( 12) months for quoted equity securities. 

Revaluation of Office Condominium and Jn vestmem Properties 
The Group carries its investment properties at fair value, with changes in fair value being 
recognized in the consolidated statement of income. The Group engaged independent 
valuation specialists to assess fair value as at December 31 , 2016 for its office 
condominium and investment properties. 
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For investment properties, a valuation methodology based on a sales comparison approach 
was used, which is a comparati ve approach that considers the sales of simi lar or substi tute 
assets and related market data and establishes a value esti mate by processes invo lvi ng 
comparison. In additi on, it measures the office condominium at revalued amount. with 
changes in fa ir val ue being recognized in OC I. The marl-.et approach ''as used fo r the 
office condomi nium, which prov ides an indication of value b: comparing the subject asset 
wi th identical or similar assets for which price information i ~ rl\ail nhk 

Impairment and Write-off of Deferred Explorution Cost~ 

The Group assesses impai rment on deferred exploration costs when fact s and circumstances 
suggest that the carrying amount of the asset may exceed its recoverable amount. Unt il the 
Group has sufficient data to determi ne technical feas ibilit: and commercial vi abil ity . 
deferred charges need not be assessed for impairment. 

Facts and circumstances that would require an impairment assessment as set forth in PFRS 
6, Exploration f or and Evaluation of Mineral Resources, are as follows: 

• the period for which the Group has the right to explore in the speci fi e area has expired 
or will expire in the near future and is not expected to be rene>ved ; 

• substanti ve expenditure on further exploration for and eva luatio n of mineral resources 
in the specific area is neither budgeted nor planned: 

• expl oration for and evaluation of mineral resou rces in the speci fie area have not led to 
the di scovery of commercially viable quantit ies of mi nera l resources and the ent ity has 
decided to discontinue such acti viti es in the speci fic area; and 

• sufficient data exist to indicate that, alt hough a development in the speci fi e area is 
likely to proceed, the carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation asset is 
unlikely to be recovered in full from successful de>elopment orb) sale. 

For deferred exploration costs, impairment is recogni7ed ' 'hen ;in SC ' ' here the Group has 
participating interest is permanentl y abandoned. Futu re events could cause the Group to 
conclude that these assets are impai red. 

Reali=ability of Deferred Income Tax Assets 
Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all temporar) deductible differences to the 
extent that it is probable that suffic ient future taxable profi ts wi ll be avail able to allow all or 
part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized. 

Estimation of Retirement Benefits Costs 
The cost of defined benefit pension plans as well as the present value or the pension 
obligation is determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial va luation in volves 
making various assumptions. These include the determi nation of the di scount rates, future 
salary increases, mortali ty rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexity of the 
valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature. defined benefit obligations 
are highl y sensiti ve to changes in these assumptions. 

In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of 
government bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefi ts wi ll be paid, 
with extrapolated maturities corresponding to the expected duration of the defi ned benefit 
obligation . 
The mortal ity rate is based on public ly avai lable mortal it) tables for the speci fie country 
and is modified accordingly with estimates of mortal it) impro'vemcnts. Future salary 
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increases and pension increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the specific 
country. 

Determination of Fair Value of Investment Properties 
The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an acti ve market for simi lar lease and 
other contracts. In the absence of such information. the Group determines the amount 
within a range of 
reasonabl e fair value estimates. In making its j udgment, the Group considers information 
from variety of sources including: 

• current prices in an active market for properties of different nature, condition or 
location 
(or subject to di fferent lease or other contracts). adjusted to reflect those differences; 

• recent prices of similar properti es in less active markets. with adjustments to reflect any 
changes in economic conditions since the date of the transact ions that occurred at those 
prices; and 

• discounted cash fl ow (DCF) projections based on reliable estimates of future cash 
flows, derived from the terms of any existi ng lease and other contracts and (where 
possible) from external evidence such as current market rents for simi lar properties in 
the same location and condition and using discount rates that reflect current market 
assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing o f the cash !lows. 

Fair Value Measurements 

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liabi lity in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 
Fair values are obtai ned from quoted market prices. DCF models and option pricing 
models, as appropri ate. 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class 
of financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate such val ue: 

Cash and cash equivalents, receiFables and ucco 11111.1 l'".rnh/e C11U! C1n ·rnecl eX/JL' l1Sl!.1 

Due to the short-term nature of cash and cash equi valents. receivables and accounts payable 
and dividends payable and accrued expenses. the carrying values or these accounts were 
assessed to approximate their fa ir values. 

AFSjinancial assets 
AFS financial assets in quoted equity instruments and quoted debt instruments are carried in 
the consol idated statement of financial position at fair value. which is determined by 
reference to quoted market prices at the close of business on the reporting uate. AFS 
financial assets in unquoted equity instruments are composed of non- listed shares of 
common stock and proprietary clu bs membership which are carried at cost because fair 
value cannot be reliably measured. Fair value cannot be reasonabl) determined because the 
range of reasonable fai r value estimates is significant and the probabi I ities of the various 
estimates cannot be reasonably assessed. 

In vestment properties 
Investment properties are carried in the consolidated s ta te me nt of financial position at 
fair va lue, which reflects market condi tions at the reporting date. 

Fair Value Hierarchy 
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As at December 31, 2016 and 2015 , the following table presents the level of hierarchy of 
the Group's AFS debt and equity instruments: 

2016 2015 
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 

AF Financial Asset~ 
p p 

Quoted debt securities 40,282,029 P- P- 66.112.6 13 P-
Quoted equity securities 95,239,857 - 94.297.877 

135,52 1,88 160.41 0.49 

6 () 

Level 3 

275,380,50 
Investment properties 5 

203,424,80 
9 

p p 

135,52 1,88 275,380,50 
6 P- 5 

p 

160.-l 10 . .Jl) 
() 

p 
203.424.80 

P- 9 

Fair value of quoted debt and equity secu rities AFS financial assets is derived from quoted 
market prices in active markets. 

Fair value of investment properties are derived using the direct market comparison 
approach 

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts that the Group has 
determined that market participants would take into account when pricing the investmen ts. 

As at December 31, 2016and20 15, there were no transfers between Level I and Level 2 
fair value measurements and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements. 

Fina ncial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 

The Group's financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents. receivables, AFS 
financial assets, accounts payables, accrued expenses and dividends payable. Cash and 
cash equivalents, short-term and long-term cash investments and AFS financial assets are 
used for investment purposes, while receivables, accounts payable and dividends payable 
arise from operations. 

The Group's activit ies expose it to a variety of financial risk : foreign e\change risk . price 
risk, credi t risk and liquidity risk. The Group has no significant exposure to interest rate 
risk as at December 31, 20 16 and 20 15. The Group' s overall risk management program 
focuses on minimizing the potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance 
due to unpred ictability of financial markets. 

The Group's exposures to these risks are managed through close monitoring by the Group's 
key management and BOD through the Finance and In vestment s Commi11ee. 

Foreign exchange risk 
Foreign exchange risk is the risk to earnings or capital arising from changes in foreign 
exchange rates. The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the prevailing 
foreign currency exchange rates on its financial statements. Fluctuations in exchange rates 
can have significant effects on the Group's reported results. The Group is exposed to 
foreign exchange risk arising from its foreign currency-denominated cash, receivable and 
AFS financial assets accounts. The Group' s polic;. is to minimize economic and material 
transactional exposures arising from currenc) mo"ements agai nst the Philipp ine Peso. 
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The Group's foreign currency-denominated exposures comprise significantly of its 
exposure in its US$, and IDR financial assets. 

The Group's significant foreign currenc)-denominated financial asset s as at December 31. 
2016 and 2015 are as fol lows: 

2016 20 15 
Origin al Peso Original Peso 

Currencl'. Eg uivalent Currenc) Eguivalent 

Assets: 
Cash and cash equi\alents: 

u $ 29,1-U Pl,37 1,S. I 5 I. l.t8 P7, l 13.025 
IOR .t0,697,508 l.t9.737 1-t 1.956.7.t:i .t82.653 

AFS financial assets: 
Quoted eguity investments - U $ 6,000 298,320 

Pl ,8 19,585 P7.S9S.678 

For purposes of translating the foreign currenc) -den om inatcd monctar) a!>set and liabili ties 
as of December 31, the exchange rates applied were as fol lo\' s: 

2016 

US$ 49.72 

IDR 0.00)7 

There is no other effect on the Group's equity other than those already affecting the 
consolidated income before income tax . 

Price risk 

2015 

47.06 

0.0034 

Price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument "i 11 lluctuatc because of 
changes in market prices. The Group is exposed to equit) ecurities price risk because of 
in vestments held by the Group, which are classified on the consolidated statements of 
financial position as AFS financial assets. The Group emplo) ~ the sen-ice of a th ird part) 
stock broker to manage its investment in shares of stock. 

Credit risk 
Credit risk is the ri sk that the Group wil l incur a loss because its counterparties failed to 
discharge their contractual obligations. The Group manages and controls credit risk by 
doing business only with recognized, creditworthy third parties. Receivable balances are 
monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group·s exposure to bad debts is not 
significant. The Group does not have any collateral held as securit) and other credit 
enhancements on its financial assets as of December 3 1, 2016 and 2015. Therefore, the 
Group's maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying amount of its financial 
assets as at December 31 , 2016 and 20 15. 
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It is the Group's poli cy to maintain the receivables at a low level except for one-time non­
trade transaction wh ich the Group classifies under the col lectible/not impai red because the 
parties have no history of default especially on transactions as agreed on the contract. 

The credit qua I ity of the financial assets was determined as folio\.\ s: 

Financial instruments class ified as "'high grade·· are those cash and cash equivalents and 
cash investments transacted with reputable local and multi-national banks and receivables 
with some history of default on the agreed terms of the contract. AFS fin ancial assets are 
considered 
"high grade'' since these are in vested in blue chip shares of stock. "Past due and impaired'" 
are those that are long outstanding and has been full) pro\ ided '"ith an allowance for 
doubtful accounts. There are no past due but not impaired receivables as of December 31, 
20 16 and 20 15, respectively. 

Concentrations of credit risk arise from financial instruments that have similar 
characteristics and are affected similarly by changes in economic or other cond itions. 
There are no significant concentrations of credi t risk wi thin the Group arising from 
financial assets since these are not directly affected by changes in economic or other 
external condit ions. 

Liquidity risk 
Liquidity ri sk is defined as the risk that the Group cou ld not be able to seule or meet its 
obligations on time or at a reasonable price. Management is responsible for liquidity, 
funding as well as settlement management. Management also ensures that the Group will 
maxim ize its gai n on trading of marketable securiti es to finance fu ture capital intensive 
projects. The Group manages its liquidity risk on a consolidated basis based on business 
needs, tax, cap ital or regulatory considerations. if applicable. through numerous so urces of 
finance in order to maintain flexibi li ty. 

The Group manages its liquidity profile to be able to finance its work ing capital 
requirements and capital expenditures and service due and maturing debts. To cover its 
financing requirements, the Parent Company intends to use internally generated funds. The 
BOD closely monitors the Parent Company's fi nancial position during its regular meetings. 

Capital Management 
The objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a healthy 
capital ratio in order to support its business and maxi mi ze shareholder value. 

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adj ustments to it, in light of changes in 
economic conditions. To mai ntain or adjust the capital structure. the Group may issue new 
shares. No changes were made on the objectives. policies or proce~~e~ during the years 
ended December 31, 20 16 and :w 15. 

Management of working capital focuses on short-term decisions relat ing to cash and cash 
equi valents and other current assets and liabili ties. The goal of working capital 
management is to ensure that the Group is able to conti nue its business operations and that 
it has sufficient funds to sati sfy maturing current liabilities and operating expenses. 

As at December 31, 20 16 and 20 15, the Group is not subject to any externally imposed 
capital requirements. 


